
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA NO. 2011-16 

REGULAR MEETING August 22, 2011 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

PRELIMINARY MEETING 
 

I 6:00 PM Work Session Regarding the Polaris Hotel Building 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 
II 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
  

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 1 of 25



7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application for Transfer.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five 
(5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Ownership, Location and Name Change: 

 Type: Package Store 
 License: Brown Jug, # 4076 
 Licensee/Applicant: Liquor Stores USA North, Inc. 
 Physical Location  No Premises 

 Current DBA: Lavelle’s Bistro, #4076 
 Licensee: Café de Paris Catering Company 
 Location: 575 1st Avenue, Fairbanks 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5855 – An Ordinance Amending the 2011 Budget Estimate 
for the Second Time.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING 
AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
b) Ordinance No. 5856 – An Ordinance Authorizing Prepayment of all 

Outstanding Revenue Bonds for the Fairbanks Transportation Center.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC 
HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4483 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 
Request Funds from the Office of Homeland Security for Regional Fire 
Department Safety Equipment and Training in an Amount of $ 50,000.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4484 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Request Funds from the Office of Homeland Security for the Replacement 
of a 2003 Ambulance in an Amount of $260,000.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
*c) Resolution No. 4485 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Request Funds from the Office of Homeland Security for the Upgrade and 
Modernization of Fire Protection Equipment in an Amount of $200,000.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 2 of 25



 
*d) Ordinance No. 5857 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 

Section 74-117(g)(3) Regarding Purpose of Hotel/Motel Tax Discretionary 
Grants.  Introduced by Council Member Stiver.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

 * Reappointment(s) to the Building Code Review & Appeals Commission.   
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 3 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 4 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 5 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 6 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 7 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 8 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 9 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 10 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 11 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 12 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 13 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 14 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 15 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 16 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 17 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 18 of 25



Introduced By:  Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: August 2, 2011   

  Introduced: August 8, 2011  
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5856 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING PREPAYMENT OF ALL 

OUTSTANDING REVENUE BONDS FOR THE FAIRBANKS 
TRANSPORTATION CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, as of the end of 2011, a balance of $1,870,000 will remain 

outstanding in bond debt for the Fairbanks Transportation Center; annual interest rates 

are scheduled to vary between 4.75 -- 5.3% over the remaining life of the bonds until full 

payment in 2026; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.   The Mayor is hereby authorized to take all actions required 
to prepay all amounts due for the Fairbanks Transportation Center 
revenue bonds on the next date open for pre-payment. 

SECTION 2.  The effective date of this ordinance shall be the ___ day of 
____________________, 2011. 

 
 

                                    ______________________ 
Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 

 
AYES:      
NAYS:      
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:   
ADOPTED:   
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 19 of 25



 Introduced By: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review:  08/16/2011 

 Date:  08/22/2011 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4483 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
REQUEST FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

FOR REGIONAL FIRE DEPARTMENT SAFETY TRAINING IN AN 
AMOUNT OF $ 50,000. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to improve the skills and knowledge of  City 

of Fairbanks fire officers and those of mutual aid departments; and 
 

WHEREAS, a regional grant in the amount of $40,000 for this purpose is 
available from the Office for Domestic Preparedness, US Department of Homeland 
Security; and 
 

WHEREAS, this program does require a 20% match of $10,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the required match funds are available in the Fire Department 

Capital Account. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is hereby authorized to accept and execute 
any and all documents required for requesting this funding on behalf of the City.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is also authorized to 
execute subsequent amendments to said grant to provide for adjustments to the project 
within the scope of services or tasks, based upon the needs of the project.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF ______, 2011 

 
 _________________________________ 
 JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
AYES:   
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ _________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, CITY CLERK Paul J. Ewers, CITY ATTORNEY 

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 20 of 25



 Introduced By: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review:  08/16/2011 

 Date:  08/22/2011 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4484 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
REQUEST FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF A 2003 AMBULANCE IN AN 
AMOUNT OF $260,000. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Fairbanks Fire Department Ambulance 03 is seven years old 
and nearing the end of its expected service life; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to continue the upgrade and modernization 
of its ambulance fleet for the Fairbanks Fire Department in order to better serve the 
public; and 
 

WHEREAS, grant funding in the amount of $234,000 is available from the Office 
for Domestic Preparedness, US Department of Homeland Security; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this program does require a 10% match of $26,000; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the required match funds are available in the Fire Department 
Capital Account. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is hereby authorized to accept and execute 
any and all documents required for requesting funding on behalf of the City. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is also authorized to 
execute subsequent amendments to said grant request to provide for adjustments to the 
project within the scope of services or tasks, based upon the needs of the project. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _______, 2011 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
AYES:          
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:    
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Janey Hovenden, CMC, CITY CLERK Paul J Ewers, CITY ATTORNEY 
AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 21 of 25



 Introduced By: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review:  08/16/2011 

 Date:  08/22/2011 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4485 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
REQUEST FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

FOR THE UPGRADE AND MODERNIZATION OF FIRE 
PROTECTION EQUIPMENT IN AN AMOUNT OF $200,000. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to upgrade and modernize its fire protection 

equipment for the Fairbanks Fire Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to request a grant in the amount of $180,000 from 

the Office for Domestic Preparedness, US Department of Homeland Security; and 

 
WHEREAS, this program does require a 10% match of $20,000; and  

 
WHEREAS, the required match funds are available in the Fire Department 

Capital account.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is hereby authorized to accept and execute 

any and all documents required for requesting funding on behalf of the City.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Jerry Cleworth is also authorized to 

execute subsequent amendments to said grant request to provide for adjustments to the 

project within the scope of services or tasks, based upon the needs of the project.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF ____, 2011 

 
 _________________________________ 
 JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, CITY CLERK Paul J. Ewers, CITY ATTORNEY 
AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 22 of 25



      Introduced by: Council Member Stiver 
         Date: August 22, 2011   

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5857   

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE SECTION 

74-117(g)(3) REGARDING PURPOSE OF HOTEL/MOTEL TAX 
DISCRETIONARY GRANTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City’s hotel/motel tax was implemented for the primary purpose of 

funding services for the promotion of the tourist industry and other economic development, and 

for the funding of services for the general public; and  

WHEREAS, revenue from the hotel/motel tax funds discretionary grants which are 

awarded by the City Council based upon the recommendations of the discretionary fund 

committee; and  

WHEREAS, the primary purpose of the discretionary grants should be the promotion of 

tourism and other economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the current ordinance does not specify this purpose, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   

 Section 1. That Fairbanks General Code Section 74-117(g)(3) is amended as follows 
(new text in bold and underlined font, deleted text in strikeout font).    
 

Sec. 74-117. – Hotel/motel tax purpose and limitation. 
 
(g) The city council establishes the following criteria and process for the 

selection and application for discretionary funds. 
 

(3) The City of Fairbanks Discretionary Fund’s primary purpose is 
promotion of the tourist industry and other economic 
development in the City of Fairbanksconcentrates its resources 
in the areas listed in item (a).  WeThe Fund cannot support 
requests for the following: 

 
  (a) Loans, deficits, or debt reduction. 
  (b) Endowments. 
  (c) Scholarships. 
  (d) Health and social services activities. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 23 of 25



Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the _____ day of 

____________ 2011.   

 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 24 of 25



AGENDA PACKET - August 22, 2011 Page 25 of 25


	AGENDA - August 22, 2011
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Transfer - Brown Jug

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5855
	Ordinance No. 5856

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4483
	Resolution No. 4484
	Resolution No. 4485
	Ordinance No. 5857

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Reappointments  to the Building Code Review & Appeals Commission 




